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SHOWE
YEARLY FINANCIAL RESULTS AT A GLANCE
{Rs.in lacs)

March ‘03 March 02 March 01 March’00  March'88
Share Capital 799.92 799.92 709,82 7o9.92 Tho.B2
Reserve & Surplus 9289.78 7827 18 G6EG2.31 5689.31 A683.41
Total Shareholder's Funds 10089.70 8627.10 7462.23 6480.23 5493.33
Unsecured Loans 552.13 74283 86572 976.32 83716
Secured Loans 463.57 219.86 190.59 39.85 207.80
Total Term Liability 1015.70 D62.69 105631 106,27 1044.96
Total Assels 11105.41 9589.80 8518.55 ¥505.50 653820
Met Sales 35645.37 31603.66 24336.03 20180.72  15562.67
(=4 Increase over Pravious year) 12.79% 20.86% 20.59% 29.67% 18,13%
Profit Before Interest
Depn. & Tax (PBDIT) 4059.29 4510.67 2471.31 2246.81 2080.76
Financial Charges 51.39 78.70 91.83 72.07 57.50
Depreciation 629.86 546.96 40119 37514 298.79
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 3378.04 3885.01 1978.29 1799.60 172347
Prafit After Tax (PAT) 2139.38 250745 1281.53 1306.65 1210.25
Eamings per Share (EPS) 26.75 31.55 16.02 16.33 15.13
Book Value per Share 126.12 107.84 93.28 g81.12 68.68
Dividend % #75.00% 75.00% 35.00% 35.00% 35.00%

# Recormmended by Board of Directors




MUMNJAL SHOWA LIMITED
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MUNJAL SHOWA LIMITED
Borrowings & Net Worth (Rs. In Lacs)

= Net Woaorth

= Borrowings 10030
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NOTICE

NOTICE ISHEREBY GIVEN THAT THE EIGHTEEMTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS
OF MUNJAL SHOWA LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY THE 26™ DAY OF AUGUST, 2003 AT
10.30 A.M. AT NOTTING HILLS, OPP. PASCO AUTOMOBILES, OLD DELHI ROAD, GURGAON-122015,
HARYANA TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as al 31st March, 2003 and Profit and Loss
Account for the year ended on that date together with the Directors’ and the Auditors' Report thereon,

2. Todeclare dividend for the financial year 2002-2003.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri. Brijmohan Lall Munjal , who retires by rotation and, being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment,

4. To appoint a Director in place of Shri. S D Khosla , whao retires by rotation and, being efigible, offers himself
for re-appointment,

5. Toappointa Director in place of Dr. K C Sethi , who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment.

6. To appoint the Auditors and to fix their remuneration, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Reseolution:
"RESOLVED THAT M/s 5. R, Batliboi & Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi the retiring Auditors be
and are hereby re-appointed as the Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting at a remuneration of
Rs. 5.45,000/- plus appiicable service tax and reimbursernent of out of pocket expenses based on actuals.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and if thought fil to pass, with or without modification {s), the following Resalutions:

7.

As Ordinary Resolutions: -
Variation in the Terms of Appointment of Shri Yogesh Munjal- Managing Director

"RESOLVED that in partial madification of the earlier Resolutions passed in the Sixteenth Annual General
Meeting held on 21% August, 20071 and Seventeenth Annual General mesting held on 18" August 2002,
the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded under Sections 198, 269 and 309 read with
Schedule- Xlil and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956 that the Basic Salary
payable to Shri Yogesh Munjal- Managing Director be increased to Rs. 85,000/~ per month from
Rs. 75,000/~ per month with effect from 01,10.2002 for the remaining period of his tenure.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to the approval of the Central Government, the Company shall pay
Incoma Tax on the perquisite value of the fellowing fringe benefits.

{iy  Subscription on Credit Cards and Club facilities including life membership,

(i} Chauffer and Motor Car Expenses.

(iil) Attendant provided by the Company at residence.

(v} Travelling expenses of the spouse.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all other terms and conditions of his appointment shall remain unchanged.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the aggregate of the remuneration payable to him in any particular Financial
Year will be subject to the overall ceiling limit laid down in Section 198 and 309 read with Schedule X111 of
the Companies Act, 1956,

Variation in the Terms of Appointment of Shri Seiji Konoue — Joint Managing Director

"RESOLVED that in partial modification of the earlier Resolution passed in the Seventeenth Annual General
Meeting held on 19" August, 2002, the consent of the Company be and is hereby aceorded under Sections
198, 269 and 309 read with Schedule- X1l and other applicable provisions, it any, of the Companies Act,
1956 that the Basic Salary payable to Shri Seiji Kenoue - Joint Managing Diractor be increased to
Rs. 85.000/- per month from Hs. 75,000/ per month with effect from 01.10.2002 for the remaining period

of his tenure.



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to'the approval of Central Government, the Company shall pay
Income Tax on the perquisite value of the following fringe benefits.

(i} Subscription on Credit Cards and Club facilities including life rembership.

(i) Chaufferand Motor Car Expenses.

{iily Attendant provided by the Company at residence.

i) Travelling expenses of the spouse,

RESCLVED FURTHER THAT all ether terms and conditions of his appointment shall remain unchanged.

BESOLVED FURTHER THAT the aggregate of the remuneration payable to him in any particular Financial
Year will be subject ta the overall ceiling limit laid down in Section 198 and 309 read with Schadule Xl of
the Companies Act, 1956."

As Special Resolution:
9. De-listing of Equity Shares
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resclution:

"RESOLVED that subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, Securities Contracts (Regulation)
Act, 1956 (including any statutory amendments) and the Rules framed there under, Securities and Exchange
Board of India (De-listing of Securities) Guidelines, 2003, Listing Agreements, and all other applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines and subject to such approvals and guidelines and subject to such
olher appravals, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary and subject to such other conditions
and maodifications as may be prescribed or imposed by any such authority while granting such approvals,
permissions and sanctions, which may be agreed 1o by the Board of Directors of the Company ( hereinafter
referrad as * the Board" which term shall include any Committee thereof for the time being exercising the
powers conferred by the Board ), consent of the Gompany be and is hereby accorded to the Board to de-
list the Equity Shares of the Company from all or any of the Stock Exchanges at Ahmedabad, Kolkata,
Ludhiana and Delhi.

"BESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to seek
voluntary de-listing and to take all necessary actions in this regard and to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any
question, doubt that may arise in this regard and to execute all such deeds, documents as may be
necessary and for this purpose to delegate the authority duly vested herein to any of the Directors or the
Company Secretary or any other person, whom the Board may deem fit to do various acts, deeds and
things as required to be done for de-listing of shares”.
10. Alteration of Articles of Association
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or withoul modification(s). the following resolution:

BESCLVED thal pursuant to Section 31 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
1956, the Articles of Association of India be aliered in the manner set out as under:
After-Article No."25", the naw Article No. 264" shall be inserted,
*That oplion or fight to call of shares shall net be given to any person except with the sanction of the
Company in general meeting.”
By order of the Board
For MUNJAL SHOWA LTD.

PANKAJ GUPTA
Company Secretary
Flace: Mew Delhi
Dated: 20.05.2003

Registered Office:
9-11, Marutl Industrial Area
Gurgaon, Haryana - 122015
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NOTES

1)

5)

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appocint a proxy to attend and
vote (on a poll only) instead cof himseli’herself. The proxy need not be a member. Proxies in
order to be valid must be received at the Company’s Registered Office not less than 48 hours
before the commencement of the Meeting.

The Explanatory Statement setting out the material facts concerning Special Business at ltem No.7, 8, 9
& 10 ot the accompanying notice as required by Section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956, is annexed
hereto.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed fram 16" August'2003 to
26" August’2003 (both days inclusive).

The dividend as recommended by the Board, if sanctioned at the meeting, will be paid to those members
whose names appear on the Company's Register of Members on 26" of August'2003. In respect of the
shares in electronic form, the dividend will be payable on the basis of beneficial ownership as per details
furnished by the Depositories for this purpose.

The Company has already transferred all unclaimed dividends declared upto the financial year ended
31¥ March, 1995 to the General Revenue Account of the Central Government as required by the Companies
Unpaid Dividend (Transfer to the General Revenue Account of the Central Government) Rules, 1978,
Shareholders whe have not yet encashed their dividend warrants for the said period are requested to claim
the amount from the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana, Paryavaran Bhawan, CGO Complex,
Lodhi Road, Mew Delhi 110 003 by queting the Company's Registration No.05-20934,

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 205A(5) of the Gompanies Act, 1956, dividend for the financial year
ended 31% March, 1996 and thereafter, which remain unclaimed for a period of 7 years will be transferred
by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central
Government pursuant to Section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956. Dividend declared for the Financial
Year 1994-1995 in the Financial Year 1995-96, remaining unpaidfunclaimed has been transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund.

Infarmation in respect of such unclaimed dividend when due Tor transfer to the said Fund is given below:

Financial year Date of declaration Last date for claiming | Due date for

ended of Dividend unpaid Dividend transfer to IEP Fund
31.03.1998 26.09.1996 25.09.2003 23.10.2003
31.03.1997 25.09.1997 2408 2004 22.10.2004
31.03.1598 26.08.1998 25.08.2005 22092005
31.03.1999 20.08.1999 19.08.2006 16.08.2006
31.03.2000 29.08.2000 2B.08.2007 25.09.2007
31.03.2001 21.08.2001 20.08,2008 17.09.2008
31.03.2002 19.08.2002 18.08.2009 15.09.2009

Shareholders who have not so far en-cashed the dividend warrani{s) are requested o seek issue of
duplicate warrant(s) by writing to the Company immediately. Shareholders are requested to note that
no claims shall lie against the Company or the said Fund in respect of any amounts which were
unclaimed and unpaid for a period of seven years from the dates that they first became due for
payment and no payment shall be made in respect of any such claims.

Members are requested to notify immediately any change of address
i) Totheir Depository Participants (DPs) in respect of their alectronic share accounts, and

i) Tothe Company's Registrar, MCS Limited in respect of their physical share folios, if any, queting thair
folio number,
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8] Electronic Clearing Service (ECS) Facility

The Company provides the facility of ECS to all shareholders, holding shares in electronic and physical
farms, residing in the cities wherever RBI has such facility. Shareholders holding shares in the physical
form who wish to avail ECS facility may authorize the Company with their ECS mandate in the prescribed
form which can be obtained from the Company upon requesl.

9)  Shareholders holding shares in electronic form may kindly nete that their bank account details as furnished
by their Depositories to the Company will be printed on their Dividend Warrants as per the applicable
regulations of the Depositories and the Company will not entertain any direct request from such shareholders
for deletion of / change in such Bank details, Further, instructions, if any, already given by them in respact
of shares held in physical form will not be automatically applicable to shares held in the electronic mode.
Shareholders wha wish to change such Bank Account details are therefore requested to advise
their Depository Participants about such change, with complete details of bank Account.

10y Shareholders are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report and Attendance Slip to the Annual
General Meating.

Annexure to the NMotice
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

Item No. 7

The Members in the Sixteenth Annual General Meseting held on 21,08.2001 had approved the remuneration of
Shri Yogesh Munjal, Managing Director of the Company and subsequently increased his basic salary from
Rs. 65000/- to Rs. 75000/- par manth with effect from 01,10.2001 in the Seventeenth Annual General Meeting
held on 19.08.2002, The annual turnaver of the Company has crossed the level of Rs. 400 Crores and the job
responsibilities have also considerably increased. Keeping in view the above, your Board of Directors by
passing a Resolution in their meeting held on 23.10.2002 have revised the basic salary of Managing Director
from As. 75000/- to Rs. 85000/-(Rupees Eighty Five thousand only) per month w.ef. 1% October, 2002 and
subject o the approval of Central Government, payment of iIncome Tax on the perquisite value of fringe benefits
mentionad |0 the resolution for the remaining period of his tenure. All other terms and conditions of his
appaintment will remain the same,

Shri Yogesh Munjal, Shri Brijmohan Lall Munjal, Shri Ashok Munjal and Shri Pankaj Munjal being related to
each other may be deemed to be interested in the Resolution under ltem no. 7.

The Board recommends the resolution to the members for their approval,

Item No. 8

The Members in the Seventeanth Annual General Meeting held on 18.08.2002 had approved the remuneration
of Shri Seiji Konoue, Joint Managing Director of the Company. The annual turnover of the Company has
crossed the level of Rs, 400 Crares and the job responsibilities have also considerably inereased. Keeping in
view the above, Your Board of Directors by passing a Besolution in their meeting held on 23.10.2002 have
revised the basic salary of Jeint Managing Director from Re. 75000/ to Rs. 85000/~ (Rupeas Eighty Five thausand
only) per month w.e.f. 14 October, 2002 and subject to the approval of Central Government, payment of Income
Tax on the perquisite value of fringe benefits mentioned in the resolution for the remaining period of his tenure,
Al other terms and conditions of his appointment will ramain the same,

Except Shri Seiji Konoue, no other director is interested/concerned in the Resolution under ltem na. 8
The Board recommends the reselution to the members for their approval.

Item No. 9

The Company had came out with its maiden public issue of equity shares in 1987. In order to provide utmest
liuidity to its valuable investors, the Company decided to get listed its equity shares on five stock exchanges
namely, Delhi, Mumbal, Ahmedabad, Kolkata and Ludhiana. However, Mumbai Stock Exchange and National
Stock Exchange have made available online trading terminals recently. Al present, the traditional style of
trading at the stock exchange premises only has completely phased out. SEBI has notified Securities and
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Exchange Board of India (De-listing of Securities) Guidelines, 2003 on January 28, 2003 under which a company
can de-list its securities from any stock exchange subject to Shareholders' approval by way of special resolution
for veluntary de-listing, if its securities ramain listed and are available for trading at one of such stock exchanges
in India which provides online trading terminals in every part of India.

The proposed voluntary de-listing of the Company's shares from the said stock exchanges will not adversely
affectany investors including the Members located in the regions where the said stock exchanges are situated
The proposed de-listing is in the interest of the Company and in order to reduce recurring cost, the Board
recommends for approval by the members resolution for de-listing of its shares from four Stock Exchanges
namely, The Delhi Stock Exchange Association Limited, The Ludhiana Stock Exchange Association Limited,
The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Limited and The Stock Exchange, Ahmedabad where the trading of
the shares of the Company is almost negligible. However, securities will remain avaitable for trading at Mumbai
Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange.

Mone of the directors of the Company is concerned or interested in the resolution at ltem Mo.8

Item No. 10

Consequent to the Company’s application to National Stock Exchange (NSE) for fisting of its equity shares,
the Company had undertaken to amend its Article of Association to the effect that option or right to call of
shares shall not be given to any person except with the sanction of the Company by way of special resolution
passed in the general meeting. This had been done so as to meel the requirement of bye-laws of Mational
Stock Exchange. The proposed resolution is therefore, placed in order to give effect to the said undertaking
given by the Company.

The Board recommends the resolution to the members for their approval. None of the directors of the Company
is concerned or interested in the resolution at ltem No.10

Copies of all relevant decuments and papers referred to in the accompanying MNotice and Explanatory Statement
are kept open for inspection by Members between 11.00A.M. to 1.00 F.M. on any working day except Sundays
and Public Holidays upto the date of Meeting at the Registered Office of the Company.

By order of the Board
For MUNJAL SHOWA LTD.

PANKAJ GUPTA
Company Secretary
Place: New Delhi

Dated: 20.05.2003

Registered Office:
-11, Maruti Industrial Area
Gurgaon, Haryana - 122 015




FUTURE PROSPECTS

During the financial year 2002-03, the Company had successfully developed Front Fork and Rear Cushion far
“SAMBITION® Model for Hero Honda Motars Limited. The Company was also develeping the samples for two
models “CD Dawn'” a low priced bike in its segment and “KARIZMA" a premium segment bike for Hero Honda
Motors Limited. These two models have been successfully launched in the manth of April, 2003 and May, 2003
respectively and as per initial response, these have been overwhelrmingly accepted in the market.

Suzuki Motors Corporation has slowed down its entry into Two Wheeler segment after studying the Indian
market conditions. We are hopeful that as and when Suzuki Metor Corporation commences manufacturing
facility, the Company will get its legitimate share.of business on merits.

The Company has successfully developed and delivered Gas Charged Front and Rear Struts for Honda Sell's
new car likely to be launched in October’2003. It was a milestone achievernent for the Company to manufacture
such “HI-TECH" product,

Our supply for “ACTIVA" Model during the period under review was appreciated by Honda Motorcycle and
Scooter India Private Limited. We have subsequently been entrusted to develop and deliver sample for 100%
export model called “LEAD" and geared scooters for Indian market called "ETERNO™. The Company has
already delivered sample and commenced mass production activity to meet customer requirement. Honda
Motorcycle and Scooter India Private Limited achieved record production of 165000 nos. vehicles in the year
2002-03. They have plans of doubling the production to 352000 nos. vehicles in the year 2003-04. MSL as
virtual single source supplier can look forward to increased sales. The Company has submitted quotation for
Mew Motorcycle Venture, which is slated for launch in 2004,

Based on growth plan and indication received from existing customers, the company has already enhanced
production capacity 1o the tune of 10 Million units (Approx) which is expected fo take care of customer
requirements of next year comfortably. The Gompany has already purchased fand at IMT Manesar for future
expansion in capacity.

DIRECTORS

Shri Brijmohan Lall Munjal, Dr. K.C Sethi and Shri 8.0 Khosla, the directors of the Company, retire by rolation
from the Board at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves far re-appointment,
The Board recommends their re-appointment as directors liabie to retire by retation.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance and Management Discussion and Analysis Reports along with Certificate of the Auditors
of your Company  pursuant to clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges has been
included in this Report as Annexure-A, Your Company has been practicing the principles of good Corporate
Governance over the years, The Board of directors supports the broad principles of Corporate Governance. In
addition to the basic governance issues, the Board lays strong emphasis on transparency, accountability and
integrity.

AUDITORS

M/s SR Batliboi & Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi, the Auditors of the Company retire at the conclusion
of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. The Company
has received a certificate from the auditors to the effect that their re-appointment, if made, would be in accordance
with Section 224(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956, The Board recommends their re-appointment.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
in compliance of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 , the Directors confirm:

a}  thatihe applicable accounting standards have been followed in the preparation of annual accounts and
that there are no material deparnures;

by that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and the judgments and estimates
rmade are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of aftairs of the Company
as at 1% March' 2003 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

¢) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d} thatthe annual accounts have been prepared on a going concem basis;

FIXED DEPOSIT

The Company has not accepted any Fixed Deposits during the year or in any other years under Section 58A
of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules made there under.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND RESEARCH &
DEVELOPMENT AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information pursuant to Section 217(1) (g) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Disclosure
of particulars in the report of the Board of Directars) Hules, 1988 regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology
Absorption and A & D and Foreign Exchange earnings & outgo are given in Annexure-B which forms part of
Directors' Report.

ENVIRONMENT COMPLIANCE

The Sound Environmental Health and Safety Management is an intagral part of the Company’s business
praclices. For all manufacturing facilities, which require environmental consents such as air, water and hazardous
waste, proper autharizations from respective Pollution Control Boards have been obtained and are in complianca
with the present Environmental Legislation. The Company initiated many programmes to Improve the health
and safety of employees by way of Internal Environment Management Programme. These initiatives and the
improvemeants arising out of these initiatives are monitored and reviewed through structured audits and
management reviews.

During the year, Company has taken membership of Haryana Environmental Management Sociaty. The Society
is currently focusing on the risk from uncontrolled dumping of industrial hazardous wastes and endeavors to
develop a common “Treatment, Storage and Disposal Facility” (TDSF) to facilitate the Industries for safe
disposal of such hazardous waste generated from industrial operations and processes.

\We have received Certificate of Sustainability ‘Green System’ from Gentral Ground Water Authority for our
Rain Water Harvesting System. Gurgaon Industrial Association(GIA) has certified the Company as 'Eco Profit
Company’ in Haryana.

The Company is constantly dedicated to the safety and health of its employees. It has started working en
"Occupational Health and Safety Assessment Series-18001 (OHSAS) specification from September’ 2001.
The target date for achievement of this certificate has been extended to August' 2003 due to-expansion in the
shop floor. This specification lays down certain requirernents foran Oceupational Health and Safety Management

System to enable the organization to control its Occupational Health and Safety Risks and improve its
parformance.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

A statement under sub-section (2A) of Section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies (Particulars
of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended forming part of this Directors’ Report is given in Annexure-C.

ISO,QS, TPM AND TS ACCREDITATION

Your Company’s manufacturing facilities in the Plant at Gurgaon continue to maintain and uphold the prestigious
IS0 9001, QS 9000 and ISO 14001 certification from reputed leading Indian and International Cerification
Institutions. During the year, the Company has obfained TS16949-1939 certification and Company is confident
of obtaining the TS16948-2002 certification by December 2003,

Your Company is actively involved in Total Productive Maintenance (TPM) since June 2000 to achieve world-
class excallence and has set June' 2004 as target date for achievement of TPM Excellency Award from JIPM
Japan, Major objectives of TPM are, formation of cross functional work groups to improve overall effectiveness
of equipment and processes within thelr areas, to procure and install maintenance free plant and machinery, to
achieve zero defects, zero break down, zere losses and zero accidents, to increase prafits of the Company by
reducing unit cost, to work towards education and training of personnel and to create a pleasant working
environment.

The Cormpany has achieved immense benefit in terms of overall approach and involvenant by one and all,
During the year under review Company's TPM Team has rectified/modified 24 bottlenack machines inorder o
achieve zero defects, zero breakdown, zero accidents and zero wastages.

The goal of Technical Specification (TS16949) is the development of fundamental quality systems. It provides
continuous improvements, emphasis on prevention of defects and reduces waste and variation in supply chain.
TS16949 s based on customer specific requirements. It defines approach and responsibility including assurance
of Company’s needs. The Gompany is confident to achieve first stage of this specification by June'2002 and
has planned for latest stage in December’ 2003.

LISTING

The Shares of your Company are listed at Dethi, Mumbai, Kolkata, Ahmedabad, Ludhiana and National Stock
Exchanges, and pursuant to Clause 38 of the Listing Agreemant, the Annual Listing fees for the year 2003~
2004 has been paid to them well before the due date i.e. April 30, 2003. The Gompany was permitted o trade
on Mational Stock Exchange till 31.03.2003. To improve the liquidity of the shares, the Company has entered
into agreement with National Stock Exchange for listing which has besn subsequently approved for listing.

Consequent to the changes in the capital market in relation to the manner of dealing in shares of Companies,
it has been ohserved that frading in equity shares of the Company at Delhi, Kolkata, Ahmedabad and Ludhiana
Stock exchanges has been reduced substantially due to availability of online terminals for trading from National
Stock Exchange and Mumbai Stock Exchange. Accordingly it is proposed to dalist the Company’'s equity
shares from one or more stch stock exchange/s.

HUMAN RESOURCES

During the year, the management continued with the strategy of imparting professional training to the executives
and staff at varicus levels with a view to upgrade their competence and managerial qualities so that they can
function effectively in a more competitive and rapidly changing environment, The management alsoformed a
number of internal task forces comprising employees to provide guidance and formulate appropriate policies.
These include Cost-cutting Measures; Improvement in Management Infarmation System etc.
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The directors express their gratitude to the Central Government and the State Government of Haryana for their
kind co-oparation and suppaort. Your directors place on record the appreciation for the assistance and con fidence
reposed by the bankers, customers, suppliers and stakeholders during the period under review. The Board also
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given for growth and development of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

BRIJMOHAN LALL MUNJAL

Chairman
Place: MNew Delhi

Dated: 20.05.2003




ANNEXURE-A TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Company's Philosophy on Code of Governance

Munjal Showa Limited (MSL), as a constituent of Hero Group, is committed to the highest standards of
Corperate Governance in all its activities and pracesses. The company Iully realizes the rights of its shareholders
to information on the performance of the company and considers itself a trustee of its shareholders. The
Company provides detailed information on various issues canceming the Company’s business and financial
performance to its shargholders. The enlite process begins with the functioning of the Board of Directors, with
leading professionals and experts serving as independent Directors and represented in the various Board
GCommittees. Systematic attempt is made to eliminale informational asymmetry between executive and nen-
executive directors.

Key elements in the Corporate Governance are transparency, accountahility and equity, in all facets of ils
operations, and all interactions with its stakeholders, including the shareholders, employees, the Govermnmant
and the Bankers

| BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of Board

The Board consists of nine Directors in a pool of collective knowledge from various disciplines like Engineering,
Finance, Business Management, Corporate Planning etc. The Board has been constituted in a manner, which
will result in an appropriate composition of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors. The Nen-
executive Directors play active rale in the meetings of the Board and are associated with the various Board
Committees. The Nen-Executive Directors bring Independent judgment in the Board's deliberations and decisions.
The Board meets regularly and is responsible for the proper management of the Company. The Board comprises
of more than 50% of Nan-Executive Directors out of which three Directors are independent Directors.

The composition of the Board of Directors as at 31¢ March 2003 is as follows:

Name Designation Executive / Non-executive / =
Independent

Mr. Brijmohan Lall Munial Chairman Non-Executive

. Yogesh Munjal Managing Director Exgcutive

Mr. Seiji Konoue Joint Managing Director Executive

Mr, Kiyashi Nagashima® Director Men-executive

Mr, Pankaj Munjal Director Non-gxecutive

Mr. Ashok Munjal Director Mon-execulive

Mr. S. D, Khosla Director Mon-executive ~Independent

r. K. K. Malhotra Director MNor-executive- Independent

Dr. K. C, Sethi Director Mon-executive- Independent

“#Representative of Showa Corporation, Japan, hased at Japan

I BOARD MEETINGS, ITS COMMITTEE MEETINGS & PROCEDURES AND ATTENDANCE
OF DIRECTORS

The Company has defined guidelines for the meeting of the Board of Directors and Gammittees in order to
institutionalize all corporate affairs and setting up systems and procedures for advance planning for matters
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requiring discussion/ decisions by the Board. These guidelines seek to systematize the decision making
process at the meetings of Board/Committees, in an informed and most efficient manner.

The Board meets at least once in a quarter to consider, amongst other business, the quarterly performance of
the company and its financial results. The Board held four meetings during the financial year 2002-03 on 24"
May 2002, 227 July 2002, 30" October 2002 and 17" January 2003. All the relevant information needed for
laking decisions by the Board is made available to the directors at the meetings.

The Board and its Committees formulate policy decisions; so as to lead and control the Company. The
Composition of the Board is in conformity with the provisions of the Listing Agreement. No Director is a
member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than 5 Committees across all companies in which
they are directors. The details are as under:

S. | Nameof Director No. of Board | Attendanceat | Number of outside | Total Number of Nurmber of
he. Mestings last AGM Directorshipis)  |Membershipis)in | Chairmanshipis)
attended i other Board in other Board
L | Cormmitiees Committees
1| Mr. Brijmohan Lall Munjal o 7 Ml Mil
2 I Yogesh Munjal iz 3 2 Mil
3| Mr. Seijl Konous
Appointed w.e.l, 07.06,2002 ki Yes il il il
4 | Mr. 5. D, Khosla 2 Mo g il 2
5 | MrKiyoshi Nagashima**
Appointed w.e.t. 24.05 2002 Nil Mo Mil Ml il
6 | Mr. Pankaj Munjal 1 No B il il
7| Mr. Ashok Munjal i Yos g 2 il
B | Mr. K. N, Malhotra 4 Yes 3 1 il
9 | Dr K. C. Sethi 4 Yes il il Hil
10| Mr, Takeshi Fukui
{Lipto 6" June 2002) 1 Mo il il Nil
11 | Mr. Yoshitaka Terazava®™
[Upto 24" May 2002} il Mo il il Mil

*

Excludes Directorship in Indian Private Limited Companies, Membership of Managing Committee of various
Chambers/other Bodies and atternate Directorship.

“*  Representatives of Showa Corporation, Japan, based at Japan

I AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committes consists of three Directors namely Dr. K. C. Sethi, Mr. Ashok Munjal and Mr. K. M.
Walhotra, being Non- Executive Directors, to review various areas of audit and accounts. All these Directors
have good knowledge of Corporate and Project Finance, Accounts and Company Law. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee as stipulated by the Board of Directors are as contained in Clause 48 of the Listing
Agreement and Section 2924 of the Companies Act, 1966.The Audit Committee would assure to the Board
adherence of adequate internal control and financial disclosure and other acts conforming to the requirements
of Listing Agresment with the Stock Exchanges. The Company Secretary acts as the secretary of the Committee,
The Auditors and AGM Finance generally attend the meetings on invitation of the Chairman.
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During the financial year 2002-03, the:Audit Committee met three times, on 24" May 2002, 30° October 2002
and 17" January 2003. Attendance of Members at the meetings of the Audit Committee held during 2002-03
was as under:

~ Members No. of Meetings attended .
Mr, K. N. Malh{:l.re;. Chaijrman 3
i, Ashok Munjal 3
Dr. K. C. Sethi 3

IV REMUMNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board decides the remuneration of Directors subjectio the approval of shareholders and Central Govermment,
if reuuired. The interestad Executive Directors do not participate or vote. The remuneration structure of whole-
time Directors comprises of basic salary, commission, perquisites and other allowances. The Chairman and
Non-executive Directors do not draw any remuneration from the Company except sitting fee for attending the
meetings of Board of Directors and Committees thereof as may be determined by the Board of Directors from
time to time. Therefore, no separate Remuneration Committee has been constituted. The details of the
remuneration paid to Directors for the financial year 2002-03 are as under:

Name Salary, Commission** Sitting “Total
Allowances and Fee™*
Perquisites ™ .
M, Brijmohan Lall Munjal il il 20000 20000
Mr. Yogesh Munjal 2033808 3487859 il 5521667
Wir. Seiji Konoue 1216381 2847622 il 4064003
W, Takeshi Fukui 580084 640237 il 1221221
Mr. 5. D. Khosla il il 35000 38000
Wir. Pankaj Munjal il il 5000 5000
M. Ashok Munjal il Mil 45000 45000
Mr. K. M. Malhotra il il 35000 35000
Dr. K. C. Sethi Nl il 35000 35000

Gross Salary includes basic salary, Company’s contribution to Provident Fund, Medical Reimbursement,
Monetary value of perquisites and value of re nt-free accommodation.

*  Commissionis calculated @ 1% of the netprofit calculated in accordance with Section 198 of the Companies
Act, 1956,

Sitting fee shown above also includes the tee paid to directors for atlending mastings of Committees of the
Board.

There are no Stock Options available f Issued to any directors of the Company and this does not form a part of
their contract with the Company.

V SHARE TRANSFER AND INVESTOR GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

The “Share Transfer and Investor Grievances Committee” has been looking into investor grievances and to
suggest remedies and measures for improvement.

During the year, the Company received 178 reguestsicomplaints from the shareholders. All the requests/
complaints were attended fo promptly and resolved to the satisfaction of the shareholders. The Company
endeavors to reply to all complaints received from the shareholders within a period of ten days. As on date no
complaints are pending except those, which are under liligation, dispute or court erdars, There was no pending
share transfer case as on 317 March 2003,




List of requests/complaints received fram shareholders during the financial year 2002-2003 is as under:

5.No. Nature of requesticomplaint received Received  Solved  Pending
1. Change of address / Bank details 26 26 Ml
2, Corraspondence related to depository operations 27 27 Mil
3 Mon- receipts of dividend warrants / Revalidation of dividend warrants 63 683 il
4, Less of shares / Duplicale Issue of shares 10 10 il
& Registration of Namination Fi 7 Nil
B. Miscallaneous 45 45 il

TOTAL 178 178 Mil

VI SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

The Board of Directors has delegated the authority to approve the share transfers ete. to the Company Secretary
and/or AGM-Finance who attend 1o the same every fortnight and in case of any dispute, forward the same 1o
the Share Transfer and Investor Grievarices Committee for their approval. The Committee comprises of four
directors, of whom two are Executive Directors. The Chairman is a non-executive independent director.

Vil GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
The Annual Ganeral Meetings of the last three years of the Campany have been held as undor;

Far the Year Location Day and Date Tirme Mo. of Special
Resolutions passed
2001-2002  Notting Hills, Old Delhi Read, Monday, 10:30 AM. o1
Opp. Pasco Automobiles, 19" August, 2002
Gurgaon-122 015
2000-2001  8-11, Maruti Industrial Area, Tuesday, 3:30 PM a2
Gurgaon- 122 015 21" August, 2001
19952000  9-11, Maruti Industrial Area, Tuesday, 330 PM. 01
Gurgaon- 122015 29" August, 2000

No resolution has been passed by the Company's sharehalders through postal ballot during the Financial Year
2002-03 and there Is no resolulion proposed to be passed through postal ballot In the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

Vil DISCLOSURES
a.  Thare ware no materally significant related party transactions during the year having potential canflict

with the interest of the Company. The transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note No. 13te the
accounts in the Annual Report.

b.  There have been no non-compliance by the Company or penalty or stricture impesed on the Company by
the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during
the last three years.

IX MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Quarterly and Half-yearly Un-Audited Financial Results and the Annual Audited Financial Results ara
published by the company in leading national newspapers i.e, The Economic Times (English) and Navbharal
Times (Hindi). Though the half yearly report is nat sent to each household of shareholders, these results are
also placed on Company’s web site www munjalshowa, net. As the Company publishes the Audited Annual
Results within a stipulated period of three months from the close of the financial year, as permitted under the
Listing Agreement of the Stock Exchanges, the Un-Audited results for the last quarter of the financial year are
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not published. Moreover, w.e.f. September, 2002 financial results are also available in the EDIFAR System
maintained by the SEBI at its website www.sebi.gow.in .

X MANAGEMENT
{A) Management Discussion and Analysis Report

. Industry Structure and Development

An offzhoot of Hero Group of Companies; Munjal Showa Limited (MSL) was established in 1585 in Technical
and Financial Collaboration with Showa Corporation, Japan - the pioneer and leader in the World for manufacture
of shack absorbers. The Hero Group and  Showa Corporation have equity parficipation to the extent of 38%
and 26% respectively in M3L.

MSL manufactures auta components for the Two-wheeler and Four-wheeler Industry, which lies under gingle
primary businass segment. Company's main products are:

Frant fork

Rear shock absarbers

Front struts

Rear struts

(Gas springs/Rear door lifters
Gas Struts (Front and Rear)

As Hero Honda Motars Limited became World's leading motorcycle manufacturer: MSL emerged as the largest
manufacturer of shock absorbers in the Country under organized sactor.

A Opportunities and Threats

Autamobiles Industry is continued to be on growth mode especially two wheeler motarcycle segment which
account for 78% of the total market share. During the peried under review more than 5 million two-wheelers
were sold, out of which motorcycle segment account for slightly more than 3.80 million vehicles. Hero Honda
Motors Limited harressed market share of 44% of motorcycle segment where MSL is a single source supplier.
Likewise, in scooter segment, the Company enjoys markel share in excess of 20% by supplying to Honda
Motoraycle and Scooter India Limited and Kinetic Motor Company Limited. Bulk of the Company’s revenue
continues lo generate from two wheeler segment.

The Company has ultra modemn plant and its products conform to highest standard of quality, safety and
dependabifity, Technology plays a pivotal role in making world-class product. In refarence to customer requirament,
the Company has installed and commissioned hi-tech facilities for making Gas Charged Front Struts and Rear
Siruts: The Plant was commissioned in the Financial Year 2002-03. In order to meel oul its customer’s
requirement of increased warranty peried, MSL has also extended its warranty period from six months o two
years on all its praducts. Consequently, In order to reduce warranty claims, the Company has installed and
commissianed successfully Nickle-Chrome Plating Plant during the period under review which has elevated the
status of your Company being focused on customer satisfaction.

As all of our customers are on growth path, the Company can canfidently look fenvard to an averall growth of
approximately 10% in next year.
. Product-wise performance

All the products of the Cormpany come under single primary business segment i.e. Shock Absorbers. lis
variants are Front Forks, Struts and Gas Spring/ Rear Door Lifters ste. Therefore, the requirement for analyzing
segment-wise or product-wise performance does not arise.

. Outlook

The outleok for 2003-04 appears to be promising one. Gur customers have eollectively indicated higher off take
level and introduction of new medels to meet and beat the competition. Hero Honda Mators Limited in two-
wheeler segment has firm plans to launch ‘KARIZMA' in the first quarter ot the year 2003-04. Honda Motorcycle
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and Scooter India Limited is also ready to launch ‘ETERNC’ a geared scooter that will compete with other
leading/established brands. In four-wheeler segment, Honda Siel Cars India Limited will launch new generation
"HONDA CITY" in second half of year 2003-04, where the Company is sole supplier, New releases and overall
growth in the market will ensure achieverment of growth as envisaged far the Company.

. Risk and Concerns

The profitability of the Company may be affected by change in Government Policy regarding Excise Duty,
Import Duty, Income Tax etc. The implications of VAT are yet to be measured and felt by the Industry. The
import content in the product constitute around 30% of the raw matetial cost. Though, the rupee is getting
stronger and stable, any sudden change in the status may affect adversely the profitability of the Coempany due
to depreciation in the rupee and / or overall recassion in the Automobile Industry. However, the Company
continuously takes initiatives placing the Company on the safe and right path of progress.

+ Internal Control System and their adequacy

The Company has in place an adequate system of internal controls to ensure efficiency of aperations and
compliance with applicable legislation. The systerm comprise a well-defined arganizalion structure, with identified
reporting and accountability levels including documented policy guidelines and manuals, The overall budget is
crystaliized before the commencement of each financial year and actual performance is reviewed with reference
to budgets and short-term forecasts by the management petiodically. Management information reports are
obtained each month and budget variances, if any, are analysed and reviewed by top management 1o Initiate
corrective actions wherever necessary.

There is an elaborate internal audit system, which is conducted by Vaish Associates, Chartered Accountants
firm. The internal auditors in their subsequent raports regulatly review the internal audit findings and the Audit
Commitiee also simultaneously reviews the reports.

- Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance

Despite the global un-certainties, which has mainly arisen due 1o the situation in Guif, Afghanistan and Iraq,
the turmover of the Company for the year under review has been Increased by almost 12,50 % from Rs.371.10
Crores in the previous year lo Rs.417 .48 Crores in the current year. The Profits before Depreciation, Interest,
and Taxes [PBDIT) and Profits after Taxes(PAT) during the period under review were Rs. 40.59 Crores and
Rs.21.39 Crores as against Rs.45.11 Crares and Rs.25.07 Crores in the previous year 2001-02 respectively.

The Company is able to maintain profitability at this level despite a reduction in the selling price from the
Customers. The profitability could be maintained at this level on account of enhanced operating efficiencies,
better working capital management, Company's serious efforts towards maintaining highest quality standard of
its products, cosl reduction, productivity improvement through TPM activities.

- Material developments in Human Resources/ Industrial Relations, including number
of people employed

The Company lays a lot of importance on manpower rationalization and efficiency improvernent. The Company
befieves that human resources are vital reésaurces for giving the campany a competitive edge in the current
business environment. The Company's philasophy is to provide congenial work environment, performance
oriented work culture, knowledge acquisition/ dissemination, skill building, creativity and responsibility and
performance based compensation. Actions have been taken to develop and enhance the skills of human
resources. The Company has successiully conducted the program 'Success and Happiness” and ‘Art of Living'
during 2002-03.

The Company had 840 employees as on 31* March, 2003.The Industrial relations remained cordial throughout
the year.
Cautionary Statement

The report contains forward looking statements that describe our objectives, plans or goals, All statements
that address expectations or projections about the future. including, but not limited to statements about the
Company’s growth, product development, market position, expenditure and financial results, are forward looking
slatements. These are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to. Government
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action, local, political or economic development, technological risks, risk inherent in the Company's growth
strateqy, dependence on certain custormers, technical personnel and other factors that could cause actual
results 1o differ materlally from those contemplated by the relevant forward looking statements. Investors
should bear this in mind while they consider forward locking statements.

(B) Disclosures

a) The Company has not entered into any transactions of a material nature with the Promoters, Directors
or the Management, their subsidiarias or relatives that may have potential conflict with the interest of
the Gampany al large. The Register of Contracts containing the transactions in which Directors are
interested is placed before the Board regularly for its approval.

The transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note No.13 of Schedule 16 to the Accounts in
the Annual Report.

b) The Company has complied with all the requirements of the Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchanges as well as regulations and guidelines of SEBL. No penalties or strictures have been
imposed by SEBI, Stock Exchanges or any statutory authorities on matters relating to the capital
markets during the last three years,

{C) The profile of Directors retiring by Rotation and other Directors eligible for
Appointment /Re-appointment.

1) MR.BRIJMOHAN LALL MUNJAL

M, Brijmohan Lall Munjal is the Chairman of Hero Group of Gompanies. Mr. Lall has a sparkling trail of
successes. He has steered the group to National and International recognition and the Group enjoys a number
of Accreditations to its credit, Hero Cycles is the largest manufacturer of bicyeles in the World and one of the
highest exporters from India. Hero Honda [s the largesl manufacturer of two-wheeler in the World. It ranks
amang top Indian corporate leaders as surveyed by Far Eastern Econamic Review.

Mr. Brijmohan Lall Munjal is actively involved in prormoting Indian Industry. He is the past President of Confederation
of Indian Industry (CI1), Sosiety of Indian Automobiles Manufacturers (SIAM) and past member of the Board of
the Country's Central Bank (Reserve Bank of India),

As a recognition of his contribution to Indian Industry, Mr. Lall was adjudged as the Businessman of the Year
{1994) by a leading Indian business magazine- Business India. XLR, a premier Institution has conferred on him
the henor of Sir Jehangir Ghandy Medal for Industrial Peace in 2000. He has been conhferred upon the Entrepreneur
of the Year Award (2001) by Emst & Young and the Business Standard’s Entrepreneur of the Year (2002},
Besides serving on the Beard of various social institutions, he is on the Board of following Companies:

Hero Cycles Limited Chairman & Director
Hero Honda Motors Limited Chairman & Director
Hero Honda Finlease Limited Chairman & Director
Omax Autos Limited Chairman & Director
Sunbeam Auto Limited Chairman & Director
Munjal Auto Industries Limited Director
Hero Financial Services Limited Director
Rockman Investments Pvt. Limited Director
Munjal Bros (Pwt.) Limited Director
Easy Bill Pvt. Limited Directar

i) MR.S.D. KHOSLA

M 5.0 Khosla retired as Executive Director from Industrial Development Bank of India. He has vast experience
in the field of Commercial and Development Banking for forty years. He has also worked as executive Chairman
of Risk Capital and Technology Finance Corporation for over three years. He is on the Board of the following
companies:
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Dewan Housing Finance Gorporation Limited Director
MWajestic Auto Limited Director
UEM (India) Limited Director

Il) DR. K C SETHI

Or. K.C. Sethi was Director General of Mangalmay Institute of Wanagement and Technalogy, Greater Noida,
until Movember 2002. Earlier he was Director General of BLS Institute of Management, Ghaziabad and Director
of ITS (Institute of Technology and Science). Dr, Sethi an eminent scholar, academician and administrator
having experience of more than 30 years in the field of Management Education, was also associated with most
of the leading and well known Institutions in India like IIM Caloutta. MDI Gurgaon, Director of [MT Ghaziabad
elc.

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE

To
The members of MUNJAL SHOWA LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Gorporate Governance by Munjal Showa Limited, for the
year ended on March 31, 2003, as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with
Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Govemance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance
ofthe conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit noran expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned
Listing Agreement.

We state that no investor grievance is pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as per
the records maintained by the Shareholders! Investors Grievance Committee.

\We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nar the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the managemant has conducted the affairs of the Company.

S.R. BATLIBOI & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Per

Pankaj Chadha

Partner
Place: New Delhi
Dated: 20.05.2003
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ANNEXURE-B TO DIRECTORS' REPORT
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE

EARNINGS AND OUTGO - COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN THE RE-
PORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
The Company has taken various steps to reduce consumption of power, fuel, oil and other energy resources
by adopting various measures, improvement of power factor, indoor shop lighting, etc. Special emphasis
has been given to improve the productivity of electric motors. A team of experts is studying the possibility
of use of various methods by which the company optimizes the use of energy withoul affecting the
productivity, quality etc. Training programmes were canducted to Increase awareness on anergy saving.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
a) HResearch and Development

Company continued to give utmostimportance 1o the R&D activities, The objective of the Company through
continuous Hesearch and Development activities is the introduction of cost effective, State-of-art-products
with enhanced lite and o increase the production capacity by further debottienecking the machinas.

During the year, the Company has developed samples for various customers for their new models of
vehicles as per the specifications of customers and technical know-how provided by our collaborators
/s Showa Corporation, Japan.

b) Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation

Your Company has absorbed the technology recelved from collaborator Showa Corporation, Japan,
cantinuously.

As In the past, the Company has successiully implemented indegenisation of various componants as an
impart substitution in order to fuffill the continuous demand of the customers for price reduction with the
prior approval of our collaborators on quality issues.

The cost reduction was possible because of material reduction, standardisation, application engineering,
product engineering & manulacturing and reduction in manufacturing cycle time.

€. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The foreign exchange earnings during the year were Rs. 25,433/~ and foreign exchange outgo during the
year was As. 57,29,99,927/-

For and on behalf of the Board

BRIJMOHAN LALL MUNJAL
Chairman
Place: New Delhi
Dated: 20.05.2003
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AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MUNJAL SHOWA LIMITED

I

ro

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Munjal Showa Limited as at March 31, 2003 and also
the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on thal date annexed
thereto. These financial statements are the respansibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India: Those Standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also ineludes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as gvaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
pinian.

As required by the Manufacturing and Other Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 1988 issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we
enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

Further to our comments in the Annexure refarred 1o above, we report that:

i) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of aur knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

ii). Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books;

iii}. The balance sheet, profit and loss account and cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account:

w). In our opinicn. the balance sheet, profit and loss account and cash flow statement dealt with by this
repart comply with the accounting standards referred to in sub-section {3C) of section 211 of the
Companies Act, 1956,

vl Onthe basis of the written representations receaived from the directors, as on March 31, 2003, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disgualified-as on
March 31, 2003 from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (o} of sub-section (1) of section
274 of the Companies Act, 1956,

vl In eur opinicn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
said accounts give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India;

a) in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2003;
o) in the case of the profit and loss aceount, of the profit for the yvear ended on that date; and
ch in the case of cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

S5.R. BATLIBOI & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Par

Pankaj Chadha
Partner

MNew Deihi Membership No.: 91813
Date : 20.05.2003

-4



TRLNMEL
SHOUWR

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 3 OF THE AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
MUNJAL SHOWA LIMITED ON THE AGCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2003

1. The Company has mainiained proper records of fixed assets showing guantitative details and situation
thereof. The Company carries out physical verification of fixed assets in a phased manner over a period of
three years and accordingly physical verification of part of fixed assets was carried out during the yaarand
the discrepancies between the physical count and the book records have been properly dealt with in the
books of account. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of the assets,

None of the fixed assets have been revalued during the year.

3. a The stocks of finished goods, stores and spares, raw-materials and components, except for those
lying with outside parties, have been physically verified by the management at reasohable intervals
during the year.

by The procedures followed by the management far such physical verification are. inour opinion, reasonable
and adequate in relation to the size of the Gompany and the nature of its business.

c) The discrepancies between physical stocks and the book records, which were not material, have
been properly dealt with in the books of account.

d)  In our opinion, the valuation of above stocks is fair and proper and in accordance with normaly
accepted accounting principles and is on the same basis as in the previous year.

4. The Company has not taken/granted any loans fromilo Companies, firms or other parties listed in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Aal, 1956 and/ or from/ to companies under the
same management as defined under section 370 {1B) of the Companies Act, 1956.

5 Loans and advances in the nature of loans have been given to employees and others and the same are
being repaid as per stipulations, along with interest, wherever applicable, exceptloans givento ex-employees
of the Compary, which are fully provided for,

6. There are adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the
nature of its business with regard to purchase of stores and spares, raw materials and components, plant
and machinery, equipment and cther assets and for sale of goods,

7. According to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions of purchase of goods and
materiale made in pursuance of contracts or arrangemants entered in the register maintained under
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and aggregating during the year o As 50,000 or more, in respact
of each party, have been made at prices which, in our opinion, are reasonable having regard to the prices
at which similar transactions have been made with other parties, excepl far iterms stated to be of proprietary
nature, where the question of comparisan does not arise. In respect of transactions of sale of goods and
materials made in pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in the aforesaid register and aggregating
during the year to Rs 50,000 or more in respect of each party, we are informed that the same being tailor-
made gaods, the question of comparison of prices does not arisa.

8. As explained to us, the Company has a regular procedure for the determination of unserviceabla or
damaged stores and spares, raw materials and compenents and finished goods. Adeguaie provision for
the loss arising on such items has been made in the accounts under review.

9. Inouropinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits frem the public within the meaning of section
58A of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules framed there under.

10. The Company has maintained reasonahble records for the sale/disposal of realisable scrap. The Company
does not have any by-product.

11. The Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with its size and the nature of its
business.

©



13.

15.

16.

. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made

by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 209(1}{d) of the Companies
Act, 1856 and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made
and raintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determining
whether thay are accurate or complete.

The Company has been regular in depositing Provident Fund and Employess State Insurance dues with
the appropriate authaorities.

. According to the information and explanations given to us, no personal expenses of employees or Directors

have been charged to revenue account, ather than those payable under the contractual obligations or In
accordance with generally accepted business practices,

According to the information and explanations given to us and the books and records examined by us,
there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Sales Tax, Custom Duty
and Excise Duty outstanding as at 31st March 2003 for a period exceeding six months from the date they
became payable.

The Company is not a Sick Industrial Compary as defined within the meaning of Clause (O) of sub-section
(1) of section 3 of Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1885.

5.R.BATLIBCI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Per

Pankaj Chadha
Partner
Membership No.: 81813

Mewr Delhi
May 20, 2003




BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2003

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders' Funds

Share Capital

Researves and Surplus

Loan Funds
Secured Loans
Unsequred Loan

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Less: Current Liabilities and Provisiens

Fixed assets
Gross Block
Less: Depreciation

Add - Capital Work-in-Progress

Investments

Current Assets, Loans and Advances

Inventonas
Sundry Deblors

Cash and Bank Balances

Other Current Assels
Loans and Advances

Current Ligbilities
Provisions

MNet current assets

Deffered Tax Liabilities (net)
{Refer note 12 b) of schedule 16)

Motes 1o Accounts

Schedule

As at

No March 31, 2003
e,

PO =

79,992,500
928,977,576

~1,008.970,076

i

<) 46,357,485
4 5521337
101,570,858
~1,110,540.935

5 921,022,499
363,778,152

557,244,347

133,960,479

691,204.826

6 81,274,286

T woa~

190,976,458
506,441,056
4,697,951
6,080,458
481,020,991

1,189.216.914

432,297,842
343,391,009
775,688,851
413,528,063
(75,466,240)

n

16

0,540,935

As al

March 31,2002

Rs

79,992,500

862,710,681

21985914
74,283,456
96269370
958,980,051

783,435.212
322,993,766
460,441,446

29,480,335

48992

1781

82,634,504

195,377,814
409,564,065

99, 444 GBY
5.138,022

_ 381,369412
1,080,894,000

360,188,042
268,967,232

628555281

__482338.719
(75,914,953)

58,980,051

Thiarms of our attached Report of even date

S.A. BATLIBOI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Par

PANKAJ CHADHA
Pariner

Place - New Dol
Dated : 20.05.2003

YOGESH MUNJAL
Maraging Diractar

PANKAJ MUNJAL
Director

S.0.KHOSLA
Director

BRIJMOHAN LALL MUNJAL

Chaiman

SENI KONOUE
Jt. Managing Director

ASHOK MUNJAL
Director

MAHESH TANEJA
AGM- Finance

DA K.CSETHI
Direstar

K.M.MALHOTRA
Diractar

PANKAJ GUPTA
Company Secretary
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MLINLAEL

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003
Schedule  For the year ended Faor the year ended
Na. March 31,2003 March 31,2002
Rs. Hs.
INCOME
Sales 4,151,872,775 3,672,890,354
Other Incame 13 22925193 38,135,466
4,174,797,968 _3,711,025,820
EXPENDITURE
Manufacturing and Other Expenses 14 3,768,869,497 3,259,958,506
Finaricial Charges 15 5,138,702 7870454
Depreciation 5 . 62,985,760 54,698,330
3_,836,993,959 3,322,525 290
Profit for the year before Tax 337,804,009 388,500,530
Frovision for Wealth Tax 246,884 252 200
Provision for Current Income Tax 125,000,000 136,000,000
Provision / (benefit) for Deferred Taxation {448,713) 1,648,554
213,005,838 250,588 776
Excess Provision of Income Tax for earlier
years written back {net) i 932,557 145,805
Profit for the Year 213,938,435 250,744,681
Surplus brought forward from Previous Year 119,933,580 79,181,399
Arnount available for Appropriations 333,872,015 ___ 329,826,080
APPROPRIATIONS
Proposed Dividend 59,992,500 59,992,500
Taxon Proposed Dividend 7,686,540 -
Transterrad to General Reserve 150,000,000 150,000,000
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 116,192,975 119,933,580
333,872,015 329,926,080
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 26.75 31.35
(Refer note 11 of schedule 16)
Motes to Accounts 16
In terms of our attached Report of even date
S.R. BATLIBO & CO. BRIJMOHAN LALL MUNJAL
Chartered Accountants Chatrrnan
Per
YOGESH MUNJAL SEWI KONOUE DR K.CSETHI
Managing Diractor Jt, Managing Director Director
PANKAJ CHADHA
Partnar PANKAJ MUNJAL ASHOK MUNJAL K.N.MALHOTRA
Director Director Diresctor
Place : Mew Delhi
Dated ; 20.06.2004 5.D.KHOSLA MAHESH TANEJA PANKAJ GUPTA
Directar AGM- Finarce Comgpany Secratary




CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit before tax and extracrdinary items

Add: Depreciation

Loss on disposal of Fixed Assets (net)
Interest Expenses

Dividend Income

Interest Income

Profit on sale of Long Term Investments
Operating Profit before Working Capital
Adjustments for—

Trade & Other Receivables

Inventories

Trade Payable

Cash generated from Operations

Direct Taxes Paid (Net)

Cash Flow before Extraordinary ltems
Extracrdinary llems

Met Cash from Operating Activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Investments

Sale of Investment

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Sales of Fixed Assels

Movement in Loans

Interest Received

Dividend Received

Net Cash used in Investing Activiies

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds! (Repayment) from/of Sales
Tax Deferment Loan (Net)

Proceeds of Bank Borrowings
Dividend Paid

Interest Paid

Net Cash used in Financing Activities

For the year Ended
March 31,2003

As.

337,804,009
62,985,760
4,388,167
2,366,547
(676.816)
(1,820,426)
(879,103)
404,168,138

{131,136,693)
4,401,356
84,943,762

362,376,563
(141,156,755)

221,219,808

221,219,808

(127,637,204)
129,876,525
(268,840,228)
183,256
(421,875)
6,812,035
823,229

(259,204,262)

{19,070,082)

24,371,571
{59,697.224)

_(2.366,547)

(56,762,282)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003

For the Year Ended
‘March 81,2002

Rs.

388,500,530
54,696,330
6,774,457
4,295,619
(4,985,740)
{9,822,536)

430,083,276

(134,542,020)
4,684,830
20,662,715
320,858,801

{107,312,408)

213,546,393

213,546,393

(103,301,990)
90,072,870
{81,435,100)
526,066

(447 550)
7,589,038
4,839,307

"~ (82,157,339)

{12,288,476)

2,826,449
(27,919,741)

(1,755,345)
(39,0371 _!_ﬂ
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For the year Ended Forthe Year Ended
March 31,2003 March 31,2002
Rs. As.
Met Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (94,746,736) 92,351,941
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at April 1 99,444,687 7.092,746
{Opening Balance}
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at March 31 4,697,951 99,444 687
{Closing Balance)
SR, BATLIBOI & CO. BRIJMOHAN LALL MUNJAL
Chartered Accolntants Chairman
Par
YOGESH MUNJAL SEWIKONOUE DRK.G SETHI
Managing Diractor JU, Managing Direclor Director
PANICAJ CHADHA
Partner PANKAJ MUNJAL ASHOK MUNJAL K.N.MALHOTRA

Place | New Daihi
Dated © 20.05,2003

Director

S5.0.KHOSLA
Diractor

Diractar

MAHESH TANEJA

AGM- Finance

Cirector

PANKAJ GUPTA
Cormpany Secretary




SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
As at Ag at
March31,2003  March31,2002
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 1
SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED
15,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 150,0_00,0!]0 150,000,000
ISSUED AND SUBSCRIBED
7,999,500 Equity Shares of Rs 10 gach 79,995,000 79,995,000
PAID UP —— i
7,999,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid 79,990,000 78,990,000
Add : Shares Forfeited 2,500 2,500
T 79,992,500 78,992,500
Of the above, 3,999,500 Equity Shares were allotted e —_—
as fully paid Bonus Shares by Capitalization of
General Reserve in an earlier year.
SCHEDULE 2
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
GEMERAL RESERVE
+  As per last account 662,784,601 587,050,000
- Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 150,000,000 150,000,000
812,784,601 737,050,000
+  Less: Deferred Tax Liabilities {nat) as on
April 1, 2001 (Refer note 12 a ) of Schedule-16 = 74,265,399
812,784,601 662,784,601
BALANCE AS PER PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT ATTACHED . 1 16__.1 92,975 119,933,580
928,977,576 782,718,181
SCHEDULE 3
SECURED LOANS
Cash Credit Loans from Banks 46,357,485

21,985,914




Asal As at
March 31,2003 March 31,2002
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 4
UNSECURED LOAN
Sales Tax Deferment Loans (Interest Free) 55,213,374 74,283,456
NOTES

1 Cash Credit Loans from Banks are secured by way of hypothecation of Company's stocks and book debts,
both present and future and further secured by pari-passu second charge over the Comparny’s fixed assets,

2 Eighty five percent of the amount of the Sales Tax Deferment Loans are guaranteed by a Body Corporate
and the balance is guaranteed by a Bank.

3 Amount of Sales Tax Deferment Loan repayable within next 12 months Hs 32,573,142/~ (Previous Year
Rs 18,070,082/-),

SCHEDULE 5
FIXED ASSETS
{Amount in Rs.)
' | GROSS BLOCK [ DEPRECIATION | NETBLOCK
| U oot T dditiors | dpstrants | Gostasal Baal | Frovded M|u|l.l'nen13." sl | Auat Ant |
Apri, durg | Deductons | March 31 ol Durg | Dodactiors | March 1 J Marcht | Mach, 51
| f a0z | meyes | 2008 0 i Your | | B0 | 2002 |
Lano Feshokf) | 13.1nv.m'| ‘ o 13107,03 - | o | e | e
Puldngs eRans | o ' WMA0ATE | tesstesT | e S| eERARY | sATeRIR | 4% @0 23R
Pt and Machirery |6ﬂ.4?4.133 ‘ 18,262,118 ‘ 26,708,162 | TESON0ASE | 29040050 | SETITOEA | 2RITIETE | XOSEET0 | EMAZITE | TN TS
‘r..mmn Flilize HEnNe | epaz2a ar.wu-J 2 7 48 1Ay ess | 28 vae 1330 | WSZ3821 | ITAALAZD | 17460984
o<t Offica Equiment | l
Varicls | W2, 102 | 1,356 547 | SE,M5| A6, 567,184 | 47075 144,084 | Q6267 | BATR AN | 10HHAIS ‘_H}.EG&HT [
}E‘W o (oot | smrew | witee | womaves | eeseste| monime | MATRRISE | SST24ASNT [ <B0.4¢1 448 |
Capital Wtk n Poginss | | ' | | L | 21 7esm
Caattnl Advanzes ‘ ‘
rcmm
Corsidind Goo) | ‘ | TR0 | 7
| Toisl¢B) _ | _ . i TR03E
| Total (As8) : | | | | | e
] 1 |
PREVIOLS YEAR ssasengns | o vea e || amms| A 21 [| o311 [ sa.mmn] la.taama‘ M.M.?en| m-uws\
| | |
NOTE

Fixed Assetsof the cost of Rs. 26,734,252/- (Pravious Year Rs. 18,270,338/) (WDV Rs. 4,383,828/- (Pravious
Year Rs, 5,733 803/-)} have been discarded during the year.




As at
March 31,2003
Rs.
SCHEDULE 6
INVESTMENTS (LONG TERM)
Unquoted
NIL {Previous vear 2,588,830) Unite of Prudential
ICIC! Mutual Fund under Liguid Plan (Dividend Option)
of Rs 10/ each =
1,134,475 (Previous vear MIL) Units of Prudential ICICI Mutual
Fund under Income Plan {Growth Option) of Rs 10/~ each 20,000,000
NIL {Previous year 8,667) Units of Pianeer IT Mutual Fund under Treasury
Management Account (Divider Option) of face value of Rs 1.000/- each -
NIL (Previous year 2,002 258} Units of Standard Chartered Mutual Fungd
undar GSSD GSSIF Investment Plan {Dividend Option) of face value of
Rs 10/ each -
2,301,921 (Previous year NIL} Uniits of Standard Charterad Mutual Fund
under GSSD GSSIF Investment Plan (Growth Option) of face value of
RAs 10/~ each 30,403,012
NIL (Previous year 1,464,128) Units of Pioheer IT] Mutual Fund undear
Income Builder Account Plan A (Monlhly Dividend Payoul) of face
valua of As 10/~ each. -
1,823,844 (Previous year ML) Units of Pioneer ITI Mutual Eund under
Income Builder Account Plan A (Monthly Dividend Payaut) of lace
value of Rs 10/~ each, 30,871,274
81,274,286

NOTES

As at

_March 31,2002

Rs.

30,629,657

10,062,605

21,942 242

20,000,000

 BD.634,504

1 Repurchase price of investments in Mutual Funds amaunts to Rs 88,261,786/~ (Previous year Rs 81,965,029,

2 32,493 units of Prudential ICICI Mutual Fund under Liquid Plan (Dividend Option), 1,913,461 units of Prudential
ICIG] Mutual Fund under Income Plan {Growth Option) and 1,468,716 units of Sun F& C Mutual Furd under FISF

shart term Plan {Growth Option) were purchased and sold during the vear,

3 2.588.930 units of Prudential ICIC| Mutual Fund under Liquid Plan (Dividend Option}, B.667 units of Pioneer [TI
Mutual Fund under Treasury Management Acoount (Dividend Option), 1,464,128 units of Pioneer [T| Mutual Fund
under Income Builder Account Plan A (Monthly Dividend Payout) and 2,002,258 units of Standard Charlerad

Mutual Fund under GSSD GSSIF Investment Plan (Growth Option) were seld during the year.

SCHEDULE 7
INVENTORIES

Raw Materials and Components

(including materials in transit Rs. 91,827 805,

Pravious year Rs, 90,775,486/~ and materials lying with 151,772,558
outside party Rs.Nil Previous year Rs. 1,714,805/-),

154,445 360

2



Stores and Spare Parts {including materials in
transit Rs 2,976,301/~ Previous Year Rs 3,138,609/-)

Finished goods

Waork-in-progress

(including materials lying with outside parties Hs 592 748/-,
Previous Year Rs. 982,639/

Scrap

SCHEDULE 8

SUNDRY DEBTORS

(Unsecured, considered good except where otherwise stated)
Qutstanding for a period exceading six months

{including Rs 1.310,864/- Previous Year

Rs. 1,244,142/~ considered doubtful of recovery)

Other Debts

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts

SCHEDULE 9

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cashin hand

Balance with Scheduled Banks :

*  In Current Accounts

* In Cash Credit Accounts

= InUnclaimed Dividend Accounts

SCHEDULE 10

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Interest Accrued on Deposits and Others

Dividend Receivable

Accruedexchange differences on Forward Contracts
Surrender value of an Insurance Palicy

Asat As at
March 31,2003 March 31,2002
Rs. Rs.
19,010,014 28,322,353
5,247,611 5,486,402
14,782,591 7,035,824
_ 163,684 ) B7.875
_ 190976458 195377814
5,192,203 5,330,085
502,559,717 405,478,122
507,751,920 410,808,207
1,310,864 1,244,142
506,441,056 409,564,065
40,469 98.712
485,867 174,145
3,164,791 98,460,831
1,006,824 710,899
4,697,951 99,444,687
- 4,991,609
- 146,413
94,208 -
5,986,250 -
6,080,458 5,138,022

o



SCHEDULE 11

LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Unsecured, considered good except where otherwise stated)
Advances Recoverable in cash or in kind or for
value to be received or pending adjustments

[including considered doubltiul of recovery Rs.625,000/-
(Pravious Year Rs. 625,000/-)]

Inter Corporate Loans
Loans to Employees and Gthers

[including considered doubiful of recovery
As.28,045/-(Previous Year Rs.28,045/(-)]

Balance with Central Excise and
Custom Authorities
Deposits

Advance Income Tax/Tax Deducted at Source
and Refund Receivable

Less: Provision for Doubitiul Advances

SCHEDULE 12

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities

Sundry Creditors
+ For Goods and Expenses (including
acceptance of Rs 119,210,942/~
Previous Year Rs43,811,945/-) and
payable to Managing Director and
Joint Managing Director Rs 6,988,593/,
Previous Year Rs 8,101,408/

+ ForOther Finance
Unclaimed Dividend

Provisions
+ Income Tax
+  Wealth Tax
+  Warranty
+ Leave Encashment
+  Proposed Dividend
¢ Tax on Proposed Dividend

Asat As at

March 31,2003 March 31,2002

Rs. Rs.

13,514,789 20,705,566

3,760,000

3,570,806 3,148,931
171,549,589 141,462,158
3,921,010 2,398 420
285,357,842 214,307 382
481 ,6?4,[}36 382,022 457
653,045 653,045
481,020,991 381,369,412
412,476,134 344,603,327
18,846,060 14,904,350
975,648 680,372
432,297,842 360,188,049
260,067,403 205,854,095
246,884 252,200
12,620,252 -
2,777,430 2,268,437
59,992,500 58,992,500
7,686,540 -
343,391,009 268,367,232
775,688,851 628,555,281




T,

SHIOWR
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2003 March 31,2002
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 13
OTHER INCOME
Interest Received (Gross  Tax
Deducted at Source Rs 323,618/ (Previous Year Rs. 635,914/) 1,820,426 9,822 536
Profit on Sale of Lang Term Investments 879,103 9,405,364
Gain on Cancellation of Foreign
Exchange Contracts (Mat) 875,004 67,398
Unspent Liabilities /Sundry Balances Written back 1,467 679 113,398
Dividend on Long Term Investments 676,816 4,985,740
Sale of scrap 17,048,723 12,537,799
Miscallaneous Receipts 156,442 1,203,211
22,925,193 38135466
SCHEDULE 14
MANUFACTURING AND OTHER EXPENSES
Cost of Raw Materials and Components
Consumed/Sold 2,660,275,415 2,267 426,518

Payments to and Provisions for Employees:

+ Salaries and Wages

«  Contribution to Provident and
Other Funds

s Staff Welfare Expenses

Manufacturing, Administration and
Selling Expenses

+  Slores,Spares and Tools Consumed
+  Excise Duty

+  Powerand Fuel

+  Rent

¢« Aates and Taxes

¢«  Repair and Maintenance

- Plant and Machinery (excluding
stores consumption)

- Buildings
- Others
+  |nsurance (Net)
+  Legaland Professional Expenses
+  Communication Expenses
+  Travel and Conveyance Expenses

94,203,292

6,170,899

9223465

162,643,511
587,336,190
93,173,427
1,463,107
255,972

9,022,508

3,182,868
6,348,184
3,078,591
4,487,820
2,427,341

10,843,802

85,524,916

6,648,004
109,597,656  8861,327 101,034,336

164,914,993
512,524 488
69,664,271
1,792,000
607,605

4,062,903

3,564 702
4,200,621
7.941,5632
3,010,092
2447 122
11,674,245




SHOUWR
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2003 March 31, 2002
Rs. Rs.
+  Auditor’s Remuneration
- As Auditors 472,500 420,000
- ForCertification and Cther Matters 231,000 156,250
- For Expenses 27,640 37,800
+  Directors’ Sitting Fee 175,000 277,000
+ Selling Expenses
- Cartage and Freight 4,683,512 2695487
- Discounts on Sales 2,202,027 2,186,786
- Advertisement and Publicity 585,378 358,697
¢ Royaity 78,088,406 48 640,765
+  Technicians Fee 869,221 43821
+  Designs and Drawing Fee (includes Rs. Nil,
Previous Year Rs. 13,082 507 pertaining
to models introduced in earlier years) 2,408,400 13,082,507
+  Software Implementation Expenses 1,813,305 8,271,000
¢+  \Warranty Expenses 25,416,585 6,081,500
+  Provision for Doubtful Debts 414,715 1,078,730
+  Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets (Met) 4,388,167 6,774 457
+  Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (Met) 4,218,710 1,125,781
+  Donations 266,225 387,938
+  Dther Expenses 6,046,099 1,006,580,211 5916672 884,334,155
i 3,776,453.282 3,252,795,007
Add/Less: Decrease/(Increase) in Stocks
¢+  Closing Stock
Finished Goods 5,247,611 5,486,402
Waork-in-Progress 14,782,591 7,035,824
Scrap 163,684 _ 87875
20,193,886 12,610,101
+  Opening Stocks
- Finished Goods 5,486 402 9,431,584
- Work-in-Progress 7,035,824 10,165,248
- Scrap B7,875 _ 17788
12,610,101 (7,583,785) 19,773,600 7,163,499
. 3,768,869,497 3,259,058,506
SCHEDULE 15
FINANCIAL CHARGES
Interest to Income Tax Department - 2,262,000
Interest to Banks and Others 2,366,547 2033619
Bank Charges 2,772,155 3,574,835

5,138,702 7.870,454

©



SCHEDULE 16
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

d)

e)

Basis of Accounting

The accounts of the Company are prepared under the histerical cost convention and in accordance with
applicable Accounting Standards except where otherwise stated. Mercantile System of Accounting is
followed by the Company except for claims ledged on customers / suppliers for price revision on supplies
made / received and insurance claims receivable, which are aceounted for as and when settled on account
of uncertainties,

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised upen the passage of title to the custormers. which generally
coincides with their delivery. Sale of goods is inclusive of excise duty but exclusive of sales tax.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assels are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended
use.

Expenditure on acoount of medification/ alteration in Plant and Machinery/ Buildings, which increases the
future benefit from the existing assets beyond its previously assessed standard of performance, is
capitalized.

All assets costing upto As. 5,000 are depreciated in the year of purchase.

Assels held for disposal are recognised as ‘Other Currant Assels’ where realizable value is considered
material.

Depreciation

it Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on Straight Line Method at the rates prescribed in
Schedule X1V to the Companies Act, 1956 as applicable at the time of addition of respective assets,

i) Amaounts added to / deducted from fixed assets on account of foreign currency fluctuations are
considered as additions / deductions of the year in which such fluctuations occur and depreciation
thereon is provided /adjusted retrospectively from the date the related assets have baen put to use,

i) Depreciation on the amount of adjustment to Fixed Assets on account of capitalisation of Insurance
Spares is provided over the remaining useful life of related/mother assets,

Investments

All investments acquired for 12 months or more are classified as long term and other investments are
classified as current. Long term investments are stated at Cost. When there is a decline in the value of
any investment, which is not considered to be temporary, then the same is provided for by reducing the
value of the investment and charging the same to the Profit & Loss Account. Gurrent investments are
valued at lower of cost or market value.




gq)

h)

D

k)

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are converted at rates ruling on the transaction
dates. In case of foreign exchange contracts, the difference between the forward exchange rate and the
exchange rate at the date of transaction is recognised as income or expense over the life of the confract.
Liabilities payable in foreign currencies are restated al year-end exchange rates or at the rates at which
foreign exchange forward covers have been obtained, Gain or loss on the restatement of the foreign
currency transactions or on cancellation of forward exchange contracts, if any, is reflected in profit and
loss account, except gain or loss on transactions relating to acquisition of fixed assets, which is adjusted
to the carrying amount of fixed assets.

Inventories

i} Inventeries of raw materials, components, stores, spares and finished goods are valued at cost or net
realisable value whichever is lower and inventories of scrap materials are valued at estimated realisable
value.

i) Costof inventories of raw materals, components, stores and spares are ascertained on weighted
average basis, from hitherto followed basis of first in first out {FIFO). However, this change has no
material impact on these financial statements.

iily Cost olfinished goods and work in process comprises of malerial, labour and other reiated overheads
including depreciation.

Excise Duty and Custom Duty

Excise duty and custarn duty on goods and materials are paid on clearance but are accounted for in the
books on accrual basis. Accordingly, provision for excise duty and custom duty is made in the accounts
for goeds and materials lying in the bonded warehouse.

Retirement Benefits

i} The Company has taken policies with Life Insurance Corporation of India to cover its liability an
account of Gratuity and Superannuation Fund payable to its employees. Premium paid/payable aon
the above policies is charged to Profit and Loss Account.

i)  Provision far leave entittement of the employees is made on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Income Taxes

Provision is made for Current Income Tax Liability estimated to arise on the results for the year at the
current rate of tax in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961,

Delerred Income Tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the Balance
Sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
puUrposes.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient
taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the assel is realized or the liability |s settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or subsequently enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

Warranty Claims

Warranty Costs are provided on accrual basis on the total sales of goods during the year, which are based
on past experience of claims.
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Other Current Assets

Other current assets represent amounts receivabla / realizable and are valued at lower of cost or estirmated
realisable value.

As the Company's business activities falls within a single primary business segment viz, auto components
for Two Wheeler and Four Whasler Industry, the disclosure requirement of Accounting Standard (A5-1 7)
‘Segment Reporting' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is not applicable.

Contingent Liabilities (not provided for) in respect of:

Current Year Previous Year
= Rs. Hs,_
a) Bank Guarantess 1,510,482 1,510,492
b) Sureties Given to Sales Tax Authorities on behalf
of four bodies corporate 580,678,127 600,560,127
c) Surety Given to Custom Autherity on behalf of 2
body corporate 28,600,000 28,600,000
d) Surety given to Haryana Vidyut Parsaran
Nigam Limited on behalfof a bady corporate 100,000 100,000
&) Demand raised by Income Tax Autharities.
being disputed by the Company 17,221,258 11,434,878
f) Labour claims against the Company nat
acknowledged as debts {net of provision) 7,862,932 2443 143

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for
Hs. 10,989,289/ {Previous Year Rs. 24,483,582/-).

Advances recoverable include Rs.7.000/- (Previous Year Rs. 31,000/-) due from an officer of the Company.
Maximum amount due atany time during the year was Rs.31,000/- {Previous Year Hs. 35,000/-).

During the year, considering revision of warranty terms with its customirs, the company has provided for
product warranty costs aggregating Rs. 12,620.252/- as against the hitherto practice of recording the
warranty expenses as and when incurred. This estimate is considered appropriate as it is determined
based on past trends of warranty elaims. As a rasult, Profit for the year and Reserves and Surplus at the
year-end are lower and provision under Schedule 121is higher by such amount.

The management has a process o assess reasonableness of its transfer price documantation as required
under relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Based on s assessment of previous year, the
management is confident that no adjustments in these financial statements will arise, when such assessment
is completed for current year.
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8. Sundry Creditors include Rs. 15,144,101/~ (Previous year Rs. 14,044,701/} due to Small Scale Industrial

Undertakings (SSI) to the extent such parties have been identified from available decuments/information.

The §8Is’ o whom the Company owes sums which are outstanding for more than 30 days are as under;
Current Year Previous Year
Rs. Rs.
Associated Engineers 944,760 34672
Divya Engineers 331,292 Z
Jai Raj Ancillaries Pvt. Ltd., 417,627 64,746
Krishna Industries 1,406,463 =
M.V, Engineering Industries 99,596 )
Rikki Plastic 344,584 22 642

Shriram Engineers 122,754 18,298 |
Gowell Rubber Industries 337,854 -

Nice Steel Industries 365,071 -
Albatross Fine Chem Ltd 57,183 S
Tekniktrad International 183,544 29,135

Abhi Enterprises 25,571 7.806
Citizen Press Components 366,621 =
Delite Enterprises 185,222 56,194

~ Shree Durga Udyog 526,359 103,100 |
Rubbsrways 379,588 80,508
Ancil Autotech Private Limited 250,070 <

The above amounis have since been paid.
9. Payments to Directors which have been debited to respective heads of expenses

comprise of the following:
Current Year

) As.
Salary, Commission and Allowarices 8,833,298
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 211,200
Perguisites (Actual and / or as evaluated under the 1,762,393
Income Tax Rules)
Sitting Fee 175,000

10,981,891*

Previous Year
Hs.

9,780,408
184 800
1,477,648

277,000

 11.719,856"

*Increase in the remuneration of Directors by Rs. 133,200/- (Previous Year Rs. 133.200/-) is subject to

approval of the shareholders.
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10. Computation of Net Profit in accordance with Section 349 of the Companies Act,
1956 for the purpose of calculating Managing Director's and Joint Managing
Director’'s Commission.

Current Year Previous Year
____PBs S
Profit as per Profit and Loss Account 337,804,009 388,500,530
Add :
Directors Remuneration 10,806,891 11,442 856
Directars Fee _ 175,000 277,000
Net Profit for the purpose of Managing E:wras,—guo 400,220.386
Directors’ Commission S SE
Commission payable to Managing Director and 6,975,718 8,004 408
Joint Managing Director @ 1% of Net
Profit for each of them
11. Earnings per Share:

Current Year Pravious Year

_______Bs e
Net Profit as per Profit and Loss Accaunt (Rs.) 213,938,435 250,744 681
Number of Equity Shares 7,999,000 7,999,000
Eamings Per Share (Rs.) 26,75 31.35
Diluted Eaming Per Share (Rs.) 26.75 31.35

12.

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

a) Delferred Tax Liabilities of Rs. 74,265,399/- arising on account of temporary differences as at April 1
2001 have been adjusted from General Resarve in the previous year,

b)  The break-up of Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net} as on 31st March, 2003 is as follows:

Tax Assets /(Llabilities) due to timing Current Year Upto Previous Year

difference in respect of: — - H& R

Expenditure debited to Profit and Loss Account but 6,303,868 1,674,277

allowed for tax purposes in the subsequent year{s)

Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances 704,552 697,217

Depreciation _ (82.474,660)  (78,286,447)
TOTAL (75,466,240) (75.914,953)

13. Related Party Disclosure

* Key Management Personnel:
-Shri Brijmohan Lall Munjal- Chairman
-Shri Yogesh Munjal - Managing Director

-Ehri Takeshl Fukui- Joint Managing Director {part of the year)
-Shri Seiji Konoue- Joint Managing Directar {part of the year upto year end)
* Related Parly Disclosure




During the year, the Company has entered into transactions with related parties. Those transactions along
with related balances as at March 31, 2003 and 2002 and for the years then ended ate presented in the

following table:

{Amount in As.

Enterprises which are Directors and their Enterprises over which
having significant influence relatives Directors! and their relatives
over the Company have significant influence

' ‘E:-u-rmnt Yoar Preyious Yaar Cu:rrEnI ‘{Efl__r._l?_r_e._-f_ieus Year Gurrant Year Previous Yaar

Purchase ot Goods 577,610,400 490.0%5_3_.??{'? — — 560,139,500 526,408,152
Sale of Goods 25,433 - - — | 3645424770 |3,199,014,004
Purchase of .;3155915 10,327.674 — — — 1,395,267 20787136
_Serh'ice Chargas Paid = — _— — 3.804.512 9,541 500
Remuneration == - 10.862.116___ I1?|9&§8 — —
Helmbpursement of.Expanses_ —_ 663,351 — = ==
Havyally 78,088,405 48,640, 785 — — = -
 Diesign and Drawing Fes Paid 2,408,400 13,082,507 — —_— — Sk
Technican Foe A 656,614 a6 6ea — - = ==
Foreign Exchanga Fluctuation )

{loss) 4,324,414 g24 529 ) — - - —
_'frr-)dﬂ Payabla 198,889,980 107,168,833 7,108,318 @,101.408 49,163,819 50,502.488
Trada HAecaivabie 17,880 _ BDO1B = — 474,366,145 373,025.268
Interest Paid 186,704 ABZ 400 = — —_ —
Dividend Paid 15,600,000 | 7280000 | 4500000 | 2t0s800| 18900000 | 8,820,000
Suraties Given lo
_Govemment Departmeanits — — — — 593,733,377 G2B.TED 127
Sureties Oblained 62,261,500 74,335,500

*  Enterprise with significant influence over the Company

» Showa Corporation, Japan

+  Enterprises over which Directors have significant influence
» HeroHonda Motors Limited

»  Sunbeam Auto Limited

¥ Hero Cycles Limited

# HeroCorporate Services Limited

» Highway Cycles Industries Limited

»  ME&M Auto Industries Limited (Only for Previous Year)

#  Majestic Auto Li

Dayanand Munjal Investments Private Limited

mited

Thakurdevi Investrments Private Limited

Mo amount has been provided as deubtiul debts or advances/ written off or written back in the year in respect
of debts due from / to above related parties.

L4



11 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO PART Il OF SCHEDULE VI TO THE
COMPANIES ACT, 1956

a) Details of Capacity and Production:-

Class of Goods Licenced Installed Actual
Capacity Capacity* Production
(Nos.) (Nos.) (Nos.)
Shock Absorbers N.A. 9,324,515 7,482 251
LA (7.272.000) (6,409,882)
Struis N.A. 969,000 414,070
M.A. (805,200 (393,795)
Window Balancer MN.A. 1,006,500 406,705
N.A, {1.006,500) (422,652)

* As certified by the management

b) Particulars in respect of Sales and Stocks for Class of Goods dealt with by the

Company: I o
Opening Stack Closing Stock Sales
Nos. Value Mos. Value Nes.  Value
Re. Rs. _ Rs,
Shock Absorbars 16,074 4,046,885 14,060 4,058,410 7,494,265 3,697,233,383
(13.413)  (7.202,114) (16,074) {4,046,885)  (6,407,221) {3,241,263,250)
Struts 1,884 1,350,116 1,298 978,230 414,656 358,326,786
(2.888) (1,963,878} {(1.884)  (1,350,116) (354,798 (334,989,530)
Window Balancer 895 89,401 1,966 208,871 405,634 49,189,069
(2.296) (265,592) (B9E) (89.401) (424,053) 154,048,179)
Components ele » - 4?_.123.5;
(42,588.305)

c) Raw Materials and Components consumed/sold :

Current Year Previous Year B
Units City. Value ity Value
. I — Rs. — - Ba._
Fork Pipe Nos. 3,691,261 2,875,852 }
Kgs. o 366,279,718 40,000 350,241,608
Bowtom Case Mos. 3,447 998 419,174,296 2.919.687 350,171,329
Main Spring Cushian Nas. 7,869,921 269,377,377 5,811,698 237,172,981
Oil Seal Nos. 8,427,741 408,281,442 7.006,974 344,793,910
Dust Seal Nos. 3,679,462 272,799,228 2,978,827 222,638,393
Other Malerials
and Components 904,363,354 762,408,265

- 2,660,275,415

- 2,267,426,516
d) C.IL.F. Value of Imports {Excluding Material in Transit)

Current Year Previaus Year

= Rs. ____Bs.

Capital Goods 15,450,132 1,324,931
Raw Materials, Companents,

Stores, Spares, Tools elc. 597,851,152 487,371,081

L4
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e} Value of imported and Indigenous Raw Materials and Components and Stores
and Spares consumed and percentage of each to the total consumption:

Current Year Previous Year
Value Percentage Walue Parcentage
Rs. Yo Rs. e

FAaw Materials and Components

+ Imported 807,635,357 30 684,188,728 30

« Indigenous 1,852,640,058 70 1,583,237,788 70
- 2.660,275,415 100 o 2E7 426,516 100

Stores and Spares

= Impaorted 28,703,828 19 26,023,284 18

* |ndigenous 123,939,683 M 135,891,708 a2
o 152,643,511 100 164,914,993 100

{f} Expenditure in Foreign Currency {on cash basis) |

Current Year Previous Year

Rs. Rs.

Technician Fee (Met of Taxes) 910,231 626,798
Foyalty (Met of Taxes) 43,572,587 31,762,845
Drawing Fae (Net of Taxes) = 10,145,698
Travelling 1,106,770 1,893,294
Interest 186,704 452 4949
Others 663,351 550,628
{g) Earning in Foreign Exchange )
Current Year Pravious Year

Rs. Rs.

FOB Value of Goods Exported 25,433 =

h) Dividend for the year 2001 -2002, Rs. 1,32,60,000/~ (Previous Year As. 7,280,000/-) remitted in foreign
currency to Showa Corporation, Japan on 2,080,000 {Previous Year 2,080,000) Equity Shares and similarty
dividend paid Rs, 68,981/ (Previous Year Rs. 17,8501} in Indian Rupees to non-resident shareholders in
the year 2001-2002 on 13,428 (Previous Year 5,100) Equity Shares.

15. Previous year's figures have been regrouped / réarranged wherever necessary to confirm to this year's
classification.

Iy terms of our attached Report of even date

5.R. BATLIBOI & CO. BRIJMOHAN LALL MUMNJAL
Chartered Accountants Chairman
Payr
YOGESH MUNJAL SEIJI KONCGUE DA K.CSETHI
Managing Diractor Jt. Managing Director Director
PANKAJ CHADHA
Partneat PANKAJ MUNJAL ASHOK MUNJAL K.N.MALHOTRA
Directar Director Director
Place : Maw Delhl
Dated ; 20.06.2003 5.0.KHOSLA MAHESH TANEJA PANKAJ GUPTA
Diractar AGM- Finance Company Secralary
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Additional information as required under Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956
Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile.

1) Registration Details.

Registration No. |2 9|34 | State Code 5§|5]
Balance Sheet. [3[1] [o]a] [2]e]els]
Date Month Year

1) Capital raised during the Year (Amount in Rs.)

Publlc Issue Rights Issue
[n] L] N 1] L
Bonus Issue Private Placement
[N L] [ N[ 1L

1l) Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs.)

Total Liabilities

[1[1]1Jo[s]a]e e 3 [5]

Total Assets

1[1[1]o]s[afo[s]3]5]

Sources of Funds
Paid - up Capital
T7] 9] o] a]2][5]0]0]
Secured Loans
[a] 6[a[s][7[4]e]s]

Application of Funds

Net Fixad Assets

(6] o] 1]2]o]a]8[2]6]

Net Current Agsets

Reservesand Surplus

fo[2[8[o|7]7]5]7 [s]

Unsecured Loans

[s[s[2[1]a]a]7]a]

Investments

[s[ 1[2[7[a[2]a [s

Misc. Expenditure

[ 4] 1] 2]s[2]8]o]l6] 3!

[N 1]0]

Accumutated Losses

N1 ]L]

Deffered Tax Liabilities (Met)

(7] s]a[e]e[2]a o]




IV) Performance of Company (Amount in Rs.)

Turnover {including olher income) Total Expenditure
([ 1[7[a]z]ol7los[e] [slefafe]o]ofa]e[5]e]
Profit / Loss before Tax Prafit/ Loss after Tax
[s[s[7[efofafofo]s] [2]1]s[e[s[s]afa]s |
Earning per Share in Rs. Dividend rate

L2[e].]17]s] (71s]

V) Generic Names of Three Principal Products | Services of Company
{ As per monetary terms )

ltem CodeNo. |8 |7 |1 (4 |9 ]9 [. Jo Jo!

{ITC Code )
Product [s[HloJc k[ [aTels[o[r[B[E |8 [S]
Deascriplion . ) :
emCodeNo. |8 |7 [0 [8 [8 Jo . o [o]
{ITC Code)
Product [s[xlru]r [s]
Description
ltem CodeNo. [8 17 [0 |88 0. [0 [o |
(ITC Code)
Product wli IN[oJo[w] [Bla[L[aln]c [E[R]S]
Descriplion
BRIJMOHAN LALL MUNJAL
Chaliman
YOGESHMUNJAL SEWI KONOUE DR K.C SETHI
Managing Director Ji. Managing Director Director
PANKAJ MUNJAL ASHOK MUNJAL K.N.MALHOTRA
Directar Diractor Diraatar
Place : New Dall
Dated : 20.05.2003 S.D.KHOSLA MAHESH TANEJA PANKAJ GUPTA
Director AGM- Finance Campany Secretany
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION :
1. Annual General Meeting

-Day, Date and Time

-Venue

2. Financial Calender

@)
(b)
c)
{d)
(&)
]

3. Face Value of the Equity Share
4. Date of Book Closure

5. Dividend Payment Date

Financial Year 2003-2004

Financial reporting for the quarter ending June'2003
Financial reporting for the half year ending Sept'2003
Financial reporting for the quarter ending December' 2003
Financial reporting for the year ending March'2004.
Annual General Meeting for the year ending March 31,2004 :

6. Listing on Stock Exchanges :

The Delhi Stock Exchange Association Limited

The Stock Exchange, Mumbal

The Caleutta Stock Exchange Association Limited

The Stock Exchange- Ahmedabad

The Ludhiana Stock Exchange Asscciation Limited

National Stock Exchange of Indla Limited

7. Stock Code

-The Delhi Stock Exchange Association Limited
-The Stock Exchange, Mumbal

-Mational Stock Exchange

-International Securities |dentification number (ISIN)

for NSDL & CDSL

. Tuesday, 267 August'’2003

10.30 AM.

: Naotting Hills, Old Delhi Road,

Opp. Pasco Automobiles,
Gurgaon-122015, Haryana

1 April to March

; End July’ 2003

. End Octoberz2003
i EndJanuary' 2004
: End June' 2004

End September2004

¢ Rs. 10/- per share
116%™ August'2003 to 26™ August, 2003

{both days inclusive)

: 30 days from the date of AGM

DSE House, 3/1 Asaf Ali Road New
Delhi-110 002

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal
Street, Mumbai-400 001

7. Lyons Range, Kolkata-700 001

Kamdhenu Complex, Panjara pole,
Ahmedabad-380 015

Feroze Gandhi Market,
Ludhiana-141 001

“Exchange Plaza”, Bandra- Kurla
Complex, Bandra ( E ).
Murnbai- 400 051

: 5519

- 520043

: munjalshow

: INEE7TFAD1018




8.

9,

10.

Market Price Data :
Performance of ersiwhile MSL Shares at The Mumbai Stock Exchange

YEAR BSE Bombay Stock Exchange

2002-03 SENSEX High | Low Volume
®s) | (Rs) (Nos.)
April'02 3,338 204 123 79621
May'02 3,126 210 155 55947
June'(2 3,245 230 205 G2006
July'oz2 | 2,988 260 177 ga7B876
August'oz 3,181 200 179 38464
September02 2,931 194 160 6342
October2 2,949 165 148 15524
MNovember(2 3,229 166 136 8367
December02 3377 175 150 9736
January'03 3,250 160 133 22504
February'03 3,284 144 130 8821
March'03 3,049 142 120 37886

Stock Performance:
Index Comparison — MSL Share Price Vs. BSE Sensex

]
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Registrar and Share Transfer Agents

MCS Limited

Shri Venkatesh Bhavan
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Mew Delhi-110 049

Tel: 26494830

Fax: 26494152
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Share Transfer System: The Company's shares being in compulsory demat list are transterable through the
depository system only. Shares In physical form are processed by MCS Limited, Registrar and Transfar
Agents of the Company every fortnight and a demat option letter is senl to the shareholder for exercising the
option to receive the shares in demat Form within 30 days. Then, the shares are confirmed to the respective
client accounts with depository of NSDL and CDSL

The total number of shares transferred in physical form during the year under review was 11007 shares,

1. A, Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2003:

! Slab —|_ No. of Shareholders | No. of Shares |
Numbers % to Numbers % 1o
- ) | Shareholders | Shareholding
Upto 5000 4181 90.54 754927 9,44
5001-10000 282 6.1 218231 273
10001200!1_’! 67 1.45 107929 1.85
20001-30000 0 0.63 72415 .91
30001-40000 9 019 33650 0.42
40001-50000 1 0.24 52128 0.65
50001-100000 14 0,30 105452 1.32
100001 and above 25 0.54 6654208 83.18
Total 4618 100.00 7999000 100.00

B. Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2003:

hareholders No. of Shareholders No. of Shares held % Shareholding
1 Individuals 4443 1442538 18,03
2 Companies 130 678861 B.49
3 Promotors 4 3120000 39.00
4 Foreign Coliaborator 1 2080000 26.00
5 Fil's, NRI's, OCB's 25 15078 0.19
G Mutual Funds, Banks, FI's etc. 15 662523 8.28

Total 4818 7999000 100.00

12. Nomination Facility:

The Company offers facility of nomination. The members are requested 1o refar ta Section 1094 of the
Companies Act, 1956 as amended. The lacility is made available folio-wise and for the entire shares
registered under the folio. The members holding shares in dematerialized form may contact and consult
their respective Dapository Participant (DP) for availing the nomination facility.




13. Dematerialization of Shares and Liguidity

14. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or
any convertible instruments, if any

15. Plant Location & Address for Correspondence

As an March 31, 2003 a total of 23,16,791 Equity
Shares of the Company, which forms 28.96 % of
Share Capital of the Company have been
dematerialized.

The Trading in Company's share is permitted
compulsorily In dematerialized form from 28"
Auguslt’2000 as per nolification issued by SEBI.

Mot Applicable

9 -11, Maruli Industrial Area, Seclor-18
Gurgaon-122 015, Haryana
Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode

should address all their correspondence to their
respective Depository Participant.

Share Transfer Agent and Registrar Mfs MCS
Limited may be contacted for any query related
to Share Transler and other matters.




